
 

 
 

Working Together to Enhance the Economic Vitality of North Central 
Washington 

 

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
 

Confluence Technology Center 

285 Technology Center Way, Wenatchee WA 

Methow & Teanaway River Rooms 

or 
Zoom Virtual Conference Room Option 

 

Meeting Agenda 

October 10th, 2023 

9:00 am 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
*Note: When the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority meeting is called to order, the 

Port of Chelan County and Port of Douglas County meetings are simultaneously called to 

order. 

 

 

II. INTRODUCTIONS 
 

 
III. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 
IV. CONSENT AGENDA 

• CDRPA: Approval of the September 26th, 2023 Meeting Minutes, Calendar 
of Events, and Check Register Pages #2023-38 through #2023-41, including 

Electronic Transfers.  

 
V. PUBLIC COMMENT  

 
VI. PRESENTATIONS 

• YMCA – Dorry Foster and Steve Robinson  
• Chelan County PUD – Dan Frazier  

 
VII. CDRPA ACTION ITEMS (Public Comment Opportunity) 

(1) Chelan County PUD 5th Street Development  

o Potential Action on Releasing Lot 8 
o Reaffirming Future Process on Surplusing Property  

(2) Volaire Aviation Consulting Agreement  

(3) Agreement for Executive Director Services – North Central Washington 

Economic Development District 

(4) Purchase and Sale Agreement – Addendum No. I John Ford III and Patsy Ford 

Property   

(5) NCESD Lease Renewal    



 
 

VIII. SUGGESTED BREAK: 10 MINUTES  

 
IX. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS (Board may act on any items listed)     

(6) EPA Brownfields Grant – Closeout Fact Sheet  
(7)   2024 Rates and Charges  

(8) Second Addendum – Microsoft Phase I Water Improvements  
             

 

X. MISCELLANEOUS STAFF REPORTS 
• CEO 

• Director of Finance & Administration 
• Director of Airports 

• Director of Economic Development & Capital Projects 
• Community Relationship Manager 

• Property & Maintenance Manager 
• CTC Manager 

 

 
XI. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
XII. REVIEW CALENDAR OF EVENTS 

 
XIII. ITEMS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 

XIV. EXECUTIVE SESSION: An Executive Session may be called during the meeting.  The 

purpose must be announced and is limited by RCW 42.30.110.  Examples include: (1) to 
discuss with legal counsel litigation, potential litigation and/or legal risks (RCW 

42.30.110(1)(i)); (2) to consider the acquisition of real estate by lease or purchase when 
public knowledge regarding such consideration would cause a likelihood of increased price 
(RCW 42.30.110(1)(b)); and (3) to consider the minimum price at which real estate will be 
offered for sale or lease when public knowledge regarding such consideration would cause a 

likelihood of decreased price (final action selling or leasing public property shall be taken in a 
meeting open to the public)(RCW 42.30.110(1)(c)); and (4) to evaluate the qualifications of 
an applicant for public employment or to review the performance of a public employee(RCW 

42.30.110(1)(g) 
 

 

XVI.      ADJOURN 
 

PLEASE NOTE:  The agenda is tentative only. The Board of Directors may add, delete, or postpone items and may 

take action on any item not on the agenda (This does not apply during a Special Meeting). The Directors may also 

move agenda items during the meeting. If you wish to address the Regional Port Authority on a non-agenda or an 

agenda item, please raise your hand to be recognized by the President.  When you have been recognized, give 

your name and address before your comments. The Board of Directors are committed to maintaining a meeting 

atmosphere of mutual respect and speakers are encouraged to honor this principal. 

 

The Port Authority office is ADA compliant. Please contact the Administrative Office at 509-884-4700 at least three 

(3) days in advance if you need any language, hearing or physical accommodation.  



 
CDRPA Meeting Minutes September 26th, 2023 Page 1 of 4 

  

  
                   

 

           Board of Directors 

 Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Meeting Minutes 

  September 26th, 2023 
9:00 am 

       

          Present: 
 

Directors:       
Donn Etherington, Director    W. Alan Loebsack, Director    
Jim Huffman, Director     Mark Spurgeon, Director    

JC Baldwin, Director       Richard DeRock, Director    
          

Staff:       
Jim Kuntz, Chief Executive Officer  Bobbie Chatriand, Admin. Asst.   

Stacie de Mestre, Dir. of Econ Dev.   Laura Camarillo-Reyes, Admin. Asst. (Zoom)   
Ron Russ, Maint. & Prop. Mngr. (Zoom)  Juile Avis, Acct. Specialist (Zoom)   
Colby Goodrich, FBO Manager (Zoom)  Lorena Amador, Acct. Specialist (Zoom)   

          Monica Lough, Director of Finance & Admin (Zoom)  
      

Legal Counsel:       

Quentin Batjer, Davis Arneil Law Firm LLP      
          

Guests:       

Mike Mackey, Community Member  Kasey Safford, NCW LIFE  

Josh Fedora, Ardurra     Samantha Vedders, Wenatchee World

The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Board Meeting was called to order at  

9:00 a.m.  
 

Introductions were made.  

 
Conflicts of Interest: None 

 
Jim Kuntz commended Director of Airports, Trent Moyers, on being presented the award 

for the 2023 NWAAAE Airport Executive of the Year at the recent NWAAAE Conference 
that was held in Kelowna, BC. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: An opportunity for public comment was provided. No public comments 

were received. 

 
 CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY CONSENT AGENDA: 

The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Consent Agenda consisting of the September 12th, 
2023 Meeting Minutes and August 2023 Commission Calendar were presented. 

 

Motion No.  9-14-23 CDRPA 

Moved by:    W. Alan Loebsack  

Seconded by:  Jim Huffman     

To approve the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Consent Agenda 

consisting of the September 12th, 2023 Meeting Minutes and August 

2023 Commission Clander. 

    

        Motion Passed 6-0 

        



 
CDRPA Meeting Minutes September 26th, 2023 Page 2 of 4 

                            
  

PUBLIC HEARING: The Public Hearing for the CDRPA Proposed 2023 Supplemental 
Budget #1 was opened at 9:06 a.m. for public comment.  No public comment was 

received.  The Public Hearing was then closed at 9:07 a.m. 
 

 
CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY ACTION ITEMS: 

 

City of Leavenworth – Partners in Economic Development Funding Request. 
Kuntz presented clarification on the Parking Study Scope of Work for the City of Leavenworth 

after an additional review was requested by the Board at the September 26th Board meeting.  
Discussion ensued and the following motion was made: 

 

 

Motion No.  9-15-23 CDRPA 

Moved by:    JC Baldwin   

Seconded by:  W. Alan Loebsack      

To approve the 2023 Partners in Economic Development Grant Request 

from the City of Leavenworth in an amount not to exceed $10,000. 

   

     Motion Passed 6-0 

 

Resolution 2023-08 Adoption of the Regional Port 2023 Supplemental Budget#1 
Lough presented the 2023 Supplemental Budget#1 and clarified changes in budget figures since 

the last presentation. The following motion was made: 
 

Motion No.  9-16-23 CDRPA 

Moved by:    JC Baldwin   

Seconded by:  W. Alan Loebsack      

To adopt Resolution No. 2023-08 Approving the 2023 Supplemental 

Budget #1. 

        Motion Passed 6-0 

        

 

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS: 
 

Executive Flight Building – Fire Sprinkler System - Ron Russ provided an update on the 
recent inspection of the Fire Sprinkler System in the Executive Flight Building that was performed 

by Kaufman Co.  They presented a list of items that will need to be updated and repaired in the 

immediate future. Based on the age of the system, a new Fire Sprinkler System may be a more 
cost-effective option long-term.  

 
The Trades District – Branding/Logo - Stacie de Mestre presented Board and staff the final 

two logo options that Claridge Media has been working on for the Port.  This logo will be used on 
all site signage, building signage, advertising and the Trades District webpage. The Board selected 

the following logo: 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Partners in Economic Development Breakfast and Lunch – Recap - Kuntz provided a recap 

of the day, attendance numbers and feedback from attendees.  

 
 



 
CDRPA Meeting Minutes September 26th, 2023 Page 3 of 4 

 
Capital Project Lists – Waterville and Mansfield Airports - Moyers provided an update on 

the capital project lists for both airports as requested by WSDOT.  These lists are required to be 
updated annually if requesting grant money. 

 
Congressional Outreach – Recap of Meetings - Kuntz provided a recap of the Congressional 

Outreach trip that was recently made to Washington DC.  The Delegation first traveled to Chicago 
and met with Pregis Packaging. In DC meetings were held with HITT Construction as well as the 

NOAA and members of our WA State Senate and Members of Congress. 

 
At 10:21 a.m. Commissioner Spurgeon called for a 10-minute break. 

 
MISCELLANEOUS STAFF REPORTS: 

 
Lough provided information and updates including: 

- The State Audit is completed and there are no findings. 
- Lough met with a representative from Enduris. The Enduris reinsurance provider is 

requiring all buildings valued in excess of $5,000,000 to receive an appraisal. More 

information will be provided as we learn more.  
 

Moyers provided information and updates including: 
- The 2nd Horizon Airlines Flight has returned.  Reports on the flight performance are 

forthcoming. 
- The TRI-ACE Exercise will be held Saturday, October 7th this year with around 40 volunteers 

and various emergency service groups. 
- Moyers attended a NWAAAE Conference in Kelowna, BC and provided the Board a recap of 

the annual conference. 

 
de Mestre provided information and updates including: 

- de Mestre provided an update on the Child Care Partnership Grant Program. Proposals were 
due at the end of August and the next step is to evaluate the proposals.  She will provide 

more updates at future meetings. 
- An update was provided on the Trades District Utilities.  If the business will be serving food 

or beverages, certain buildings will be pre-designated for such a use.  
 

Russ provided information and updates including: 

- Russ updated Staff and Board on the continuous flooding at the Cashmere Mill District, mostly 
because of Reed Canary Grass and Beavers. 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

Executive Session was announced at 11:05 a.m. for a period of thirty minutes with no action 
anticipated at the conclusion of the session. The purpose consisted of RCW 42.30.110(1)(i) to 

discuss with legal counsel litigation, potential litigation and/or legal risks and RCW 
42.30.110(1)(b) to consider the acquisition of real estate by lease or purchase when public 

knowledge regarding such consideration would cause a likelihood of increased price. The 

Executive Session was extended for ten minutes at 11:35 a.m.  Executive Session concluded at 
11:45 a.m.  

 
Meeting reconvened in Regular Session with no action taken.   

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: An opportunity for public comment was provided. No public comments 

were received. 
 

Meeting adjourned at 11:46 a.m.  

 
 

 



 
CDRPA Meeting Minutes September 26th, 2023 Page 4 of 4 

 
Signed and dated this 10th day of October 2023. 

 

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
  
 

  _________________________________ 
Mark Spurgeon, Director    Richard DeRock, Director 

 

    _________________________________ 
Donn Etherington, Director    JC Baldwin, Director 

 
_______________________________  _________________________________ 

Jim Huffman, Director    W. Alan Loebsack, Director 

























Proposal for Consideration 
WENATCHEE VALLEY YMCA



WENATCHEE VALLEY YMCA  
5th Street Campus Proposal for Lot 8  
 
The Chelan PUD Commissioners along with the YMCA Board & Trustees have agreed upon 
the purchase of additional land at the PUD’s 5th street campus for the YMCA. The 
Commissioners of the Chelan County Public Utility District have accepted the Y’s proposal 
to purchase the lot identified as Lot 8 in the current redevelopment property plan for the 
PUD 5th Street Campus. The revised term sheet to include Lot 6, Lot 7, and Lot 8 was 
accepted on Monday, September 18, 2023, for the pending Purchase and Sale Agreement 
to be signed in October.  
 
PRICING 
 The YMCA is prepared to purchase Lot 8 for $804,350, a total or $1,204,350 for 
lots 6, 7 & 8. We understand that the current lot boundary lines are still being adjusted, 
however with Lot 8 connecting to Lot 7, the YMCA is not concerned about infringement of 
line adjustments if we can also acquire Lot 8.  

 
 
PURPOSE 
 With increasing construction costs for the new YMCA facility, we are forced to 
reduce the design of certain program and storage areas. The Fleet Annex, and its current 
industrial design, could support the Y in relieving this shortfall and provide profit centers 
to help reduce any debt we may incur from the main capital project.  
 

 
 



PROFIT CENTERS 
o Personal Training Center: The fitness center in the (new) main facility is 

designed for general member use. When our personal trainers use this space, 
it takes away from member usage and can reduce member satisfaction and 
retention. The annex would provide a space for a designated ‘training center’ 
to allow for maximum usage at both the fitness center and training center. 
The ‘training center’ also allows us to repurpose our current equipment that 
is not suitable for the new fitness center.  

o Recreation Equipment Outfitter Lease:  With proximity to the loop trail and 
waterfront, we believe we could lease a section of the annex to an outfitter 
for rental of recreational equipment like kayaks, stand-up paddleboards, 
bikes, rollerblades, etc. This will benefit the community and the lease will 
provide funding for other aspects of YMCA services and programs.  

o Half-Day Pre-School Center:  Although the Annex could not currently qualify 
as a licensed childcare center with the state, it could serve as a half-day pre-
school center, therefore meeting an additional need for early learning 
opportunities for young families. Most importantly, it can ultimately provide 
a large indoor gross motor space for this age group. 
 

 
 
ADDITIONAL BENEFITS AND USES: 

o Designated Teen Center – Currently, the YMCA provides free Teen Center 
memberships to every middle school student as part of our Middle School 
Outreach Initiative. The Teen Center has after school hours and may not 
align best with general operating hours and YMCA full access. Moving the 
Teen Center to the Annex would allow for designated space, open for 
determined hours, unrelated to the main Y, and therefore less confusing to 
families and teens.  

o Additional Parking  
o Maintenance Space 
o Storage  
o Office Space 

 
BENEFIT TO THE Y 
 Our capital project budget restrictions do not allow us to build a new facility 
designed to meet future anticipated needs. Our donors are concerned about the future 
expandability options for the YMCA on this campus. Three concerned donors have 
designated additional funds for the Y to acquire Lot 8, thus relieving the financial burden 



of this decision for the YMCA Board & Trustees. Ultimately, Lot 8 will provide an 
opportunity for future YMCA leadership to expand the building(s) to meet the demands.  
 
BENEFIT TO CAMPUS REDEVELOPMENT 
 All annex spaces and usage of those spaces will align with the YMCA mission and 
cause and therefore, benefit the community and overall redevelopment plan for the campus. 
Unlike other potential buyers, under the Y’s ownership, regardless of what profit centers 
we host in the Fleet Annex, it will always align with the purpose and values of the YMCA 
cause.  
 Additionally, the PUD would not need to work with additional lot developers or a 
fourth party to occupy this lot (YMCA, WMT, Headquarters Developer), nor provide or 
manage any demolition. We believe this is fair and equitable to all parties. 
 
 
 
OUR MISSION 
The mission of the Wenatchee Valley YMCA is to strengthen youth, families, and 
communities by promoting Christian principles and putting them into practice through 
leadership and programs that build healthy spirit, mind, and body for all. 
 
 
 
 
OUR CAUSE 
At the Y, strengthening community is our cause. We believe that lasting personal and social 
change can only come about when we all work together to invest in our kids, our health, 
and our neighbors. That is why we focus our work in three areas: 

• Youth Development – Nurturing the potential of children and teens 
• Healthy Living – Improving community health and well-being 
• Social Responsibility – Giving back and supporting to our neighbors 

 
 
 
 



Y:\10 - Commission Meetings\2023 Agendas\10-10-2023\Working Documents\Option to 
Purchase Chelan PUD HQ Property Lot 8 - Memo.docx 

 
Memo 
To:  Board of Directors 

From:  Stacie de Mestre 

Date:  October 5, 2023 

Re: Option to Purchase – Chelan County PUD HQ Property Lot 8 

On August 22, 2023 the Board took the following action: 

“To approve Chelan County PUD’s request to waive the Port of 
Chelan County’s option to purchase lots 4, 5, 6, and 7, contingent 
upon the YMCA and the Music Theatre of Wenatchee closing on the 
sale of said properties.” 

Attached please find the draft Memorandum of Agreement that 
resulted from this action.   

At Tuesday’s meeting the Wenatchee YMCA and Chelan County PUD 
will present a plan for lot 8.  It is anticipated that the Chelan PUD will 
request the Port of Chelan County to waive their option on this lot as 
well.   

Since the attached MOA has not been signed, Staff is suggesting it be 
modified based on the outcome of Tuesday’s meeting.  Additionally, 
Staff is suggesting language be added to the MOA to clarify the 
timeline/sequence of events between the Chelan PUD declaring future 
parcels surplus, the POCC exercising or waiving its option, and the 
Chelan PUD negotiating/entering a purchase and sale agreement with 
another party.  Further discussion will be had at Tuesday’s meeting. 



Memorandum of Agreement 1 
4894-9772-9150, v. 1 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT REGARDING OPTION TO PURCHASE 
 
 THIS MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT REGARDING OPTION TO PURCHASE (“MOA”) is 
made and entered this date by and between the Port of Chelan County, a Washington 
municipal corporation (the “Port”), and the Public Utility District No. 1 of Chelan County, a 
Washington municipal corporation (the “PUD”), sometimes collectively referred to herein as 
the “Parties” or individually as a “Party.” 
 

RECITALS 
 
A. The Parties entered an Option to Purchase recorded on February 28, 2019 at Chelan 

County Auditor File No. 2492483, records of Chelan County, Washington (the “Option”). 

B. The option to purchase set forth in the Option is triggered when the PUD formally 
declares all or any portion of the property described in the Option surplus to the needs 
of the PUD and provides the Surplus Notice (as defined in the Option) to the Port.   

C. The Surplus Notice has not yet been provided to the Port. 

D. The PUD has undertaken significant planning efforts with regard to the HQ Property, as 
defined in the Option. 

E. As anticipated by the Option, the Parties have been meeting and conferring in good 
faith to evaluate lot configurations associated with the HQ Property. 

F. The PUD desires to have a certain portion of the HQ Property released from and no 
longer subject to the Option.   

AGREEMENT 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in light of the above Recitals, which are incorporated herein by this 
reference as part of the agreement of the Parties, and in consideration of the mutual covenants 
set out below, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
1. Scope of MOA.  This MOA only applies to the HQ Property, as defined in the Option.  

2. Draft Site Plan.  Attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is a conceptual site plan for the HQ 
Property being considered by the PUD (“Draft Site Plan”).   

3. Lot Creation.  The PUD intends to undertake the steps and obtain the necessary 
approvals to create the 8 Lots identified in the Draft Site Plan, as legal lots of record. 

4. Internal Access Road.  The Port has no objection to the dedication or creation of a 
public or private interior road as depicted on the Draft Site Plan. 



Memorandum of Agreement 2 
4894-9772-9150, v. 1 

5. Partial Release of Option.  Upon the satisfaction of the following conditions, the Port 
shall formally release that portion of the HQ Property generally identified as Lots 4, 5, 6 and 7 
on the Draft Site Plan from the Option: 

5.1 The PUD shall notify the Port and provide copies of the recorded documents 
creating the 8 Lots as legal lots of record consistent with the Draft Site Plan. 

5.2 The PUD shall notify the Port and provide copies of the recorded documents 
creating the internal access road consistent with the Draft Site Plan.   

6. Termination. There are no time frames associated with completing the steps identified 
in Section 5, above; however, If the Surplus Notice is provided to the Port prior to the 
satisfaction of the conditions set forth in Section 5, above, then this MOA shall terminate and 
be of no further force or effect between the Parties. 

7. Recording Amendment to Option. Once the steps in Section 5 have been completed, 
then the Parties shall record an amendment to the Option to formally remove Lots 4, 5, 6 and 7 
from the Option.  In addition, the amendment to the Option shall update the legal description 
for the HQ Property.  The PUD shall pay for the costs to record the amendment to the Option. 

8. Miscellaneous Clauses. 

8.1 Counterparts.  This MOA may be executed separately or independently in any 
number of counterparts and may be delivered by manually signed counterpart, e-mail or other 
electronic means.  Each and all of these counterparts shall be deemed for all purposes to be one 
document, binding as such on the parties.  The e-mail or other electronic transmission of any 
signed original document, and retransmission thereof, shall be the same as delivery of an original.   

8.2 Corporate Authority; Binding Signatures.  Each of the individuals executing this 
MOA warrant that they are an authorized signatory of the entity for which they are signing, and 
have sufficient authority to execute this MOA. 

8.3 Governing Law and Venue.  This MOA is governed and interpreted in accordance 
with Washington law.  Any litigation arising out of or in connection with this MOA shall be 
conducted in Chelan County, Washington 

8.4 General Provisions.  There are no verbal agreements which modify this MOA.  This 
MOA constitutes the full understanding between the Parties.  Any and all subsequent 
modifications of this MOA shall be in writing and signed by the Parties.  The “effective date of this 
MOA” shall be the date of the last signature set forth below. 



Memorandum of Agreement 3 
4894-9772-9150, v. 1 

8.5 Attorney’s Fees.  In the event of a dispute, each Party shall be responsible for their 
own attorney fees.  Ogden Murphy Wallace, PLLC represents the Port and the PUD is represented 
by independent legal counsel.  

PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 1 OF CHELAN 
COUNTY 

 
 
 
By:   By:   
 James M. Kuntz, Executive Director   Daniel Frazier, Director of Shared 

Services 



Memorandum of Agreement 4 
4894-9772-9150, v. 1 

EXHIBIT “A” 
Draft Site Plan 

 

 





Personal Services Agreement April 1, 2017 - December 31, 2017
Maximum not to exceed price of $25,000

Personal Services Agreement March 1, 2018 - January 31, 2023
Monthly Retainer of $4,000 1 Year Extension (February 1, 2023 - January 31, 2024)

Year Monthly Retainer 
Fees

Travel 
Reimbursements Total

2017 ** 24,180.14$               -$                        24,180.14$     (PMA)
2018 40,000.00$               2,913.40$               42,913.40$     (PMA)
2019 48,000.00$               3,312.21$               51,312.21$     (PMA)
2020 48,000.00$               792.45$                  48,792.45$     (CDRPA)
2021 48,000.00$               1,820.21$               49,820.21$     (CDRPA)
2022 48,000.00$               3,839.74$               51,839.74$     (CDRPA)

01/01/2023 - 08/30/2023 32,000.00$               406.15$                  32,406.15$     (CDRPA)
Est. 09/01/2023 - 01/31/2024 20,000.00$               -$                        20,000.00$     (CDRPA)

Total Investment 308,180.14$             13,084.16$             321,264.30$   

**
The Year 2017 did not have a monthly retainer in place; rather a maximum not to exceed price of $25,000.

Volaire Aviation 
Agreement & Payment History

Y:\1 - Admin\Documents for CEO\10.02.23 Volaire Aviation Payment History

















 

1 
Agreement for Executive Director Services 

 

AGREEMENT FOR EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SERVICES  
BETWEEN THE CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY AND 

THE NORTH CENTRAL WASHINGTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
  

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ______ day of October, 2023, by and between the 

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority (the “CDRPA”), a Washington municipal corporation, and 

the North Central Washington Economic Development District (“NCWEDD”), a Washington non-

profit organization, agree as follows: 

 

RECITALS 

 

Whereas, the NCWEDD is in need of an Executive Director; and 

 

Whereas, the CDRPA is willing to lend its Community Relationship Manager to serve as 

the NCWEDD’s Executive Director. 

 

AGREEMENT 

  

1. Services:  The NCWEDD will be assigned Craig Larsen, the CDRPA’s Community 

Relationship Manager, to provide Executive Director services commencing on October 1, 2023, 

and ending on September 30, 2024 (the “Executive Director”).   

 

a. The Executive Director shall faithfully perform the duties of the position as prescribed by 

the laws of the State of Washington and by the policies, rules, and regulations made 

thereunder by the NCWEDD (the "Services").    

 

b. The CDRPA shall provide additional Services as agreed upon by the Executive Director, the 

CDRPA, and the NCWEDD. 

 

2. Priorities of Work:  The administration of economic development will reside with the 

Executive Director with the assistance of leadership and staff. The Executive Director shall have 

freedom to collaborate with the NCWEDD leadership team for the following Services: 

 

● Maintain organizational momentum on current programs as outlined in the 
Comprehensive Economic Development Strategies (CEDS). 

● Promote existing improvement plans and execute 2023-2024 goals; 
● Select, place, and transfer of NCWEDD personnel in collaboration with leadership 

and subject to consultation with the Board; 



 

2 
Agreement for Executive Director Services 

● Assist existing businesses in retaining employees as well as expanding their 
business; 

● Encourage new small business development throughout the region; 
● Facilitate economic development activities with other organizations in the 

community; 
● Competently manage the portfolios of the enterprise, such as finance, human 

resources, and operations; 
● Offer technical assistance to regional partners, business and other organizations; 
● Conscientiously work to provide a successful transition when the Board identifies 

the another Executive Director; 
● Work collaboratively and satisfactorily with the NCWEDD Board of Directors. 

  

3. Special Employment. The NCWEDD shall be responsible for providing the Executive 

Director with office space, support services, materials, supplies, tools and equipment appropriate 

to perform the Services. All correspondence, other documents, e-mail and other communications 

made by the Executive Director in connection with the Services under this Agreement shall be 

the property of the NCWEDD and subject to its document retention, management and other 

applicable policies and regulations. 

 

4. General Responsibilities. The Executive Director will remain a full-time regular employee 

of the CDRPA, will remain on the CDRPA’s payroll, will remain subject to the CDRPA’s general 

personnel administration, and will continue to receive compensation and benefits solely from 

the CDRPA.  The Executive Director shall remain subject to the CDRPA’s personnel policies, rules 

and regulations.  The CDRPA shall be responsible for payment of all the Executive Director salary 

and related benefits, pension, insurance, taxes and withholdings required under the CDRPA’s 

personnel rules, policies and contracts and applicable federal and state law.  The CDRPA shall be 

responsible for keeping and maintaining the personnel file and payroll and other records of the 

Executive Director. 

 

5. Payment. 

 

a. The NCWEDD shall pay to the CDRPA an hourly reimbursement rate in the amount 

described on Exhibit A based on the number of hours actually worked by the 

Executive Director on behalf of the NCWEDD. The NCWEDD shall keep and 

maintain a daily time report showing the hours worked by the Executive Director 

pursuant to this Agreement.  At the end of each month, the NCWEDD shall prepare 

and submit to the CDRPA a statement showing the Executive Director’s hours 

worked and the total fee due for the month along with payment for that month.   



 

3 
Agreement for Executive Director Services 

b. The fee paid to the CDRPA is intended to cover all of its costs and expenses related 
to loaning the Executive Director to the NCWEDD, including all payroll, benefits 
and workers’ compensation related costs.  The fee to be paid by the NCWEDD shall 
be the sole and exclusive consideration paid to the CDRPA.   

6. Term: This Agreement is for a period commencing on October 1, 2023, and ending on 
September 30, 2024. 

7. Termination:  This Agreement may be terminated prior to its expiration date by the 
following means: 

a. Just Cause:  The Executive Director shall be subject to discharge during the term 
of this contract for just cause under NCWEDD policy. 

b. End of Contract:  The contract terminates upon the conclusion of the term as 
identified in Section 6 herein. 

c. Unilateral Termination:  The CDRPA may terminate the contract with NCWEDD, 
upon the affirmative vote of the majority of the Board.  In the event of such 
termination, the CDRPA and the NCWEDD will mutually agree on acceptable 
explanatory statements.  

d. Incapacity. In the event the assigned Executive Director is unable to fulfill the 
Executive Director duties due to retirement, death, or disability, the CDRPA would 
assign another qualified staff member to fulfill the Agreement unless mutually 
agreed upon to terminate the Agreement. 

8. Relationship of Parties: This Agreement shall not be construed to create any association, 
partnership, joint venture, employment, or agency relationship between NCWEDD and the 
CDRPA for any purpose. The NCWEDD has no authority (and shall not hold out as having 
authority) to bind the CDRPA and NCWEDD shall not make any agreements or representations 
on the CDRPA’s behalf without the CDRPA’s prior written consent. 

Without limiting the above paragraph, the Executive Director will not be eligible to participate in 
any vacation, group medical or life insurance, disability, profit sharing or retirement benefits, or 
any other fringe benefits or benefit plans offered by the NCWEDD to its employees, and the 
NCWEDD will not be responsible for withholding or paying any income, payroll, Social Security, 
or other federal, state, or local taxes, making any insurance contributions, including for 
unemployment or disability, or obtaining workers' compensation insurance on behalf of the 
Executive Director. The NCWEDD shall be responsible for, and shall indemnify the CDRPA against, 
all such taxes or contributions, including penalties and interest. Any persons employed or 
engaged in connection with the performance of the Services shall be NCWEDD employees or 
contractors and NCWEDD shall be fully responsible for them and indemnify the CDRPA against 
any claims made by or on behalf of any such employee or contractor. 



 

4 
Agreement for Executive Director Services 

9. Hold Harmless:   Each party shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the other party, 
its current and former affiliates, its and their respective current and former officers, directors, 
employees, representatives, and the successors and assigns, from and against any and all 
liabilities, losses, damages, costs and expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and expenses) associated with or incurred as a result of any claim, action, or 
proceeding brought by a third party arising out of or relating to (i) any breach of such party’s 
representations, warranties, covenants and obligations under this Agreement; (ii) such Party’s 
gross negligence or willful misconduct in performing its obligations under this Agreement; or (iii) 
such Party’s failure or alleged failure to comply with all applicable laws; provided each Party shall 
promptly notify the other Party in writing of any such claim, action or proceeding, promptly give 
the other Party the opportunity to assume sole control of the defense or settlement of such 
claim, action or proceeding and give the other Party all necessary information and assistance (at 
the other Party’s sole expense) in connection with such defense and settlement. Either Party shall 
have the right to retain counsel and participate in such defense or settlement. Neither Party shall 
settle any matter subject to indemnification without the prior written consent of the other Party; 
provided, however, that such consent shall not be required if the settlement will not impose any 
restriction or liability on the other Party that is not fully discharged. 

10. Complaints and Criticisms:  The NCWEDD’s Board, individually and collectively, will 
promptly refer to the Executive Director all criticisms, complaints, and suggestions called to the 
NCWEDD’s Board attention for study, recommendation, and/or action as needed. 

11. Evaluation:  The NCWEDD Board Chair and another NCWEDD Board Member will meet 
regularly with the Executive Director on a scheduled basis for review of the goals, progress on 
the strategic plan goals, and for communicating NCWEDD needs and happenings.   

12. Professional Development:  The Executive Director shall attend appropriate and relevant 
professional development meetings, trainings, and conferences at the local and state level and 
the NCWEDD shall directly pay for registration and travel costs. 

13. Savings Clause:  If, during the term of this Agreement, it is found that a specific clause of 
the contract is illegal in federal or state law, the remainder of the contract not affected by such 
ruling shall remain in force. 

14. Entire Agreement:  This contract represents the total agreement between the Parties 
regarding the employment of an Executive Director between the CDRPA and the NCWEDD and 
there are no verbal agreements which modify the terms. 

15. Assignment: The NCWEDD shall not assign any rights or delegate or subcontract any 
obligations under this Agreement without the CDRPA’s prior written consent. Any assignment in 
violation of the foregoing shall be deemed null and void. Subject to the limits on assignment 
stated above, this Agreement will inure to the benefit of, be binding on, and be enforceable 
against each of the Parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. 



 

5 
Agreement for Executive Director Services 

16. Governing Law, Jurisdiction and Venue. This Agreement has been executed in the state of 
Washington and shall be governed in accordance with the laws of the state of Washington in 
every respect and other applicable laws, rules and regulations.  Venue and jurisdiction of any 
lawsuit involving this Agreement shall exist exclusively in Chelan County, Washington. 

17. Counterparts: This Agreement may be signed in two or more counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

18. Headings.  Paragraph headings and numbers have been inserted for convenience 
reference only.  If there shall be any conflict between any such headings or numbers and the text 
of this Agreement, the text shall control.   

19. Exclusive Terms:  This Agreement contains all of the terms agreed upon by the parties 
with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior contracts, agreements, 
arrangements and communications between the parties concerning such subject matter whether 
oral or written.  This Agreement shall not be modified, amended, altered, or supplemented 
except by agreement in writing duly executed by both of the parties hereto. 

20. Public Records:  The CDRPA is a public agency as defined by the Public Records Act (Ch. 
42.56 RCW).  Records, the contents of which that are not otherwise declared by law to be exempt, 
are public and are subject to inspection and copying by any person.  In the event a request for 
this Agreement is made under the Public Records Act, NCWEDD agrees that this Agreement may 
be released in response to the request. 

BY SIGNING THE FOREGOING AGREEMENT, NCWEDD AND THE CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL 
PORT AUTHORITY AGREE TO ITS TERMS. 
 

 

Dated this ______ day of October, 2023 at _________________________, Washington 

  

NORTH CENTRAL WASHINGTON  
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT 
AUTHORITY  

 
 
________________________________  
Matthew Pleasants, Board Chair                                                                            

 
                                                                                
________________________________                                                                            
Jim Kuntz, CEO 
 
                                                                                 

 

  



 

6 
Agreement for Executive Director Services 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 

NCWEDD Pass-Through Wage Rate for  

Executive Director Services 

 

 

NCWEDD Hourly Rate  $32.00 
FICA & Medicare 7.65% $2.45 
L&I  .23 
SUI 0.24% 0.08 
EAF 0.03% 0.01 

TOTAL REIMBURSEMENT AMOUNT $34.77/Hour 
 

 





Addendum No. 1 to Purchase 1 
and Sale Agreement 
4857-9069-7850, v. 2 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 TO PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS ADDENDUM NO. 1 TO PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (“Addendum”) is entered 
into this date by and between John Ford III and Patsy Ford, husband and wife (“Seller”), and the 
PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY, a Washington municipal corporation (“Purchaser”), sometimes 
collectively referred to as the “Parties.”   
 

RECITALS 
 
A. The Parties entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement dated February 28, 2023 (the 

“Agreement”) for Purchaser’s purchase of real property located at Malaga, Washington 
and legally described in the Agreement (the “Property”). 

 
B. The Parties agree that Purchaser timely exercised its right to extend the Review Period 

as set forth in the Agreement. 
 
C. The Parties have been working closely to evaluate the location of the desired water 

system improvements and the ultimate configuration of the property to be acquired. 
The Parties desire to further extend the feasibility and related deadlines set forth in the 
Agreement on the terms and conditions set forth herein. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in recognition of the foregoing Recitals and in light of the mutual 

promises, covenants, and conditions set forth below and other good and valuable 
consideration, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
1. The Recitals set forth above are incorporated herein by this reference as if set forth in 
full as binding commitments of the Parties. 

2. The Parties hereby agree to further extend the Review Period as defined in Paragraph 
9.1 of the Agreement through January 15, 2024.  The Parties agree that the contingencies set 
forth in Paragraphs 9.3 and 9.4 shall also expire on January 15, 2024 and that the Waiver 
described in Paragraph 9.1 shall also apply to Paragraphs 9.3 and 9.4.  If the Waiver is not 
provided by January 15, 2024, then this Agreement shall terminate and be of no further force 
or effect, and any remaining earnest money on deposit with the Escrow Agent shall be 
refunded to Purchaser.  

3. The Parties agree that the purchase price for the Property shall be based on $75,000 
per-acre as ultimately determined by a survey of the Property.  Section 3.1 of the Agreement is 
hereby amended to reflect the new per-acre purchase price.  

4. An access and utility easement will cross property owned by the Seller to provide access 
to the Property.  The easement area is in addition to the Property.  The Parties agree that the 



Addendum No. 1 to Purchase 2 
and Sale Agreement 
4857-9069-7850, v. 2 

purchase price for the easement area shall be based on the same per-acre price as set forth in 
Section 3 of this Addendum regarding the purchase of the Property (i.e. $75,000 per acre for 
the easement area).  Please see Section 7 of this Addendum below regarding the attached 
Exhibit “X”, which is incorporated herein by this reference.  Exhibit “X” depicts the Property to 
be acquired and the access and utility easement to be granted at closing.  During the Review 
Period, the Parties agree to negotiate an access and utility easement in a form that is 
acceptable to the Malaga Water District.   

5. With regard to the closing date, the Parties hereby agree as follows: (a) the date for 
closing set forth in Paragraph 11 of the Agreement is extended until no later than January 31, 
2024; and (b) the extensions to closing provided for in Paragraph 9.5 of the Agreement no 
longer apply. 

6. The Purchaser deposited $25,000 in earnest money with the Escrow Agent, of which 
$10,000 has been released to Seller pursuant to Paragraph 2.1 of the Agreement.  The Parties 
agree that $7,500 (representing one-half of the remaining earnest money on deposit with the 
Escrow Agent) shall be released to Seller as additional consideration for this Addendum and be 
subject to the same terms and conditions as Paragraph 2.1 of the Agreement (i.e. non-
refundable except in the event of a default by Seller). 

7. The property configuration anticipated by Paragraph 9.2 of the Agreement has been 
agreed upon by the Parties and is attached hereto as Exhibit “X”, and incorporated herein by 
this reference.  In other words, the Parties agree that the Site Contingencies set forth in 
Paragraph 9.2 of the Agreement have been satisfied and that Exhibit “X” attached hereto shall 
replace Exhibit “A” attached to the Agreement (as anticipated by Paragraph 9.2 of the 
Agreement).   

8. The Parties agree that the contingency set for the Paragraph 9.5 of the Agreement has 
been struck and replaced with Sections 9 and 10 of this Addendum.   

9. The Seller requests the Purchaser to process a boundary line adjustment consistent with 
Exhibit “X”, which shall occur at Purchaser's sole cost and expense.  The boundary line 
adjustment shall be recorded immediately upon approval by Chelan County, which is 
anticipated to occur in 2023 (i.e. prior to closing).  Seller agrees to sign all documents necessary 
to submit and process the boundary line adjustment.  If the boundary line adjustment is not 
recorded with the Chelan County Auditor by December 31, 2023, then the Agreement shall 
terminate and be of no further force or effect between the Parties and any remaining earnest 
money on deposit shall be refunded to Purchaser.  Closing is expressly contingent upon Chelan 
County allowing for the creation of the Property as a legal lot of record for utility purposes only 
so that the deed for the Property can be recorded at closing.  This Agreement shall terminate 
and be of no further force or effect if the County does not recognize the Property as a legal lot 
of record at or before Closing and any remaining earnest money on deposit with the Escrow 
Agent shall be refunded to Purchaser.   



Addendum No. 1 to Purchase 3 
and Sale Agreement 
4857-9069-7850, v. 2 

10. The Seller agrees to cooperate and support a conditional use permit application to be 
submitted by the Purchaser and Malaga Water District associated with the reservoirs, related 
water system improvements, and access road to be constructed by the Purchaser, or the 
Malaga Water District on the Property and the access easement referenced above and 
generally depicted on Exhibit “X” (which construction shall not occur until after closing).  Seller 
agrees to sign any and all necessary applications and related documents to commence and 
process the conditional use permit application.  The Seller agrees that the obligation to 
cooperate and support the conditional use permit shall survive the closing of the transaction 
described in the Agreement and this Addendum.   

11. Except as modified by this Addendum, the Parties hereby affirm and ratify all terms and 
conditions of the Agreement.  In the event of a conflict between the terms of the Agreement 
and this Addendum, the terms and conditions associated with this Addendum shall control. 

SELLER:  PURCHASER: 

 PORT OF CHELAN COUNTY 
 
 
      
John L. Ford III  James M. Kuntz, Executive Director 

Dated:  Dated:  
 
 
   
Patsy L. Ford 

Dated:  



Addendum No. 1 to Purchase 4 
and Sale Agreement 
4857-9069-7850, v. 2 

EXHIBIT “X” 

 



 

Memo 
To: Board of Directors 

From: Monica Lough  

cc: Jim Kuntz 

Date: October 10, 2023 

Re: NCESD Lease Renewal 

 

North Central Educational Service District has been a long-term tenant 
leasing 8,193 square feet of the 3306 Building in Pangborn Business Park.  
Their current lease, including extensions, expires as of December 31, 
2023.  Current rent is $7,040.49 per month, or $0.859 per square foot 
monthly.  Staff is negotiating terms of a lease extension as follows: 

- Commencing January 1, 2024 and ending December 31, 2024, with two 
one-year extensions 

- $7,251.70 per month ($0.885 per square foot), with an annual 3.0% 
increase  

Staff is requesting approval of the terms of the Lease Renewal with North 
Central Educational Service District. 



Grant Purpose
In 2020, the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority, 
the City of Wenatchee, and the City of Rock Island 
(referred to as the Coalition Group) were awarded 
a Coalition Brownfields Assessment Grant from the 
Environmental Protection Agency. The purpose 
of the grant was to conduct environmental and 
planning assessments to enable redevelopment of 
brownfield properties. Brownfields are underused 
land with known or perceived contamination.

Project Activities
Over the last three years, the environmental 
consulting firm, Maul Foster & Alongi, Inc. (MFA), 
has assisted the Coalition Group in completing 
work at six properties, with historical property uses 
including orchards, smelting, and ore processing. 
Grant funds were used for the following actions:
• Due diligence for property acquisitions
• Assessment of environmental contamination
• Cleanup action planning
• Identification of redevelopment opportunities

Wenatchee Valley
Brownfields Project

Location of project sites in Chelan and Douglas counties.

Drilling at Riverfront Park along the Columbia River.

Contact Us
General contact: Stacie De Mestre, CDRPA, 509-884-4700, stacie@cdrpa.org

Fire Station and Riverfront Park: Laura Gloria, City of Wenatchee,  
509-888-3616, lgloria@wenatcheewa.gov

Environmental consultant: Amanda Bixby, MFA, 360-635-8371,  
abixby@maulfoster.com



Due Diligence
Assessment of brownfield properties often begins 
with due diligence activities, referred to as Phase I 
environmental site assessments (ESAs) to support 
potential property acquisitions. Phase I ESA 
activities included:
• Regulatory and historical record reviews
• Interviews with property representatives
• Site walks to identify potential contamination

Environmental Sampling
If contamination was suspected on a property 
following a Phase I ESA, a Phase II ESA was 
developed to investigate soil, groundwater, 
and/or vapor for potential contamination from 
current or historical operations. In some cases, 
suspected contamination concerns identified 
during the Phase I ESA process were ruled out 
by the sampling in the Phase II ESA process; in 
others, contamination was confirmed. Once 
contamination on a property was identified, 
cleanup plans were developed in compliance 
with regulatory standards and were compatible 
with planned property reuse. 

Hazardous Building Materials
In addition to evaluating contamination in the 
natural environment, some brownfield properties 
contained buildings slated for demolition or 
renovation that contained potentially hazardous 
building materials. Hazardous building material 
surveys were conducted to assess the presence 
of asbestos-containing material and lead-based 
paint and to support cleanup planning. Detailed 
reports were compiled documenting hazardous 
building materials to guide contractors during 
future building renovations. 

Redevelopment Planning
Redevelopment planning stages for brownfield 
properties included existing conditions 
evaluations, market analyses, and development of 
funding strategies for property acquisition. Reuse 
planning supported the proposed redevelopment 
of brownfield properties into the following:
• Residential housing
• Office space
• Retail space, including restaurants

Project Phase 
I ESA

Phase 
II ESA

Cleanup 
Planning

Redevelopment 
Planning

Fire Station 
Adaptive Reuse

P P

Goodfellows 
Orchard

P P P

Lovitt Mine P

Riverfront Park P P P P

Rock Island 
Silicon Smelter

P

Worthen Street P

Summary of grant activities completed for each property.

Historic fire station building on South Chelan Avenue in Wenatchee, Washington. 
Photograph provided by the City of Wenatchee.

Funding Usage
• Public Outreach and 

Programmatic (19%)

• Phase I Environmental Site 
Assessment (5%)

• Phase II Environmental Site 
Assessment (59%)

• Cleanup Planning (5%)

• Redevelopment 
Planning(13%)

19%

5%

59%

5%
13%



Rates & Charges 
Rates Effective January 1, 2023 – December 31, 2023 

Approved by the  
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Board of Directors 

 on October 25, 2022. 



1 | P a g e  
 

Contents 
PANGBORN MEMORIAL AIRPORT ............................................................................................................................... 2 

FBO Services .................................................................................................................................................................. 2 

Aviation Ramp Parking Fees ...................................................................................................................................... 3 

Hangar & Tie Down Lease Rates ............................................................................................................................... 4 

Aircraft Liability Insurance Coverage Minimums ................................................................................................. 6 

Annual Pre-Payments ................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Airfield Charges ............................................................................................................................................................. 7 

Landing Fees .................................................................................................................................................................. 7 

Fuel Flowage Fees ........................................................................................................................................................ 7 

Terminal Building Aviation Ramp: Wastewater Collection & Treatment ........................................................ 7 

Badge Fees ..................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Terminal Parking Fees ................................................................................................................................................. 9 

Terminal Building Rates: General ........................................................................................................................... 10 

Terminal Building Rates: Airlines ........................................................................................................................... 11 

Signatory Airlines ........................................................................................................................................................ 11 

Non-Signatory Airlines ............................................................................................................................................... 11 

Incentive Program: New Commercial Air Service to New Destination.......................................................... 12 

GA Terminal Building Rates ..................................................................................................................................... 13 

Non-Aeronautical Buildings ..................................................................................................................................... 13 

Land Leases .................................................................................................................................................................. 13 

Executive Hangar Site Development ...................................................................................................................... 14 

MANSFIELD AIRPORT ................................................................................................................................................... 15 

Lease Rates................................................................................................................................................................... 15 

Hangar Rates ................................................................................................................................................................ 15 

WATERVILLE AIRPORT ................................................................................................................................................. 16 

Lease Rates................................................................................................................................................................... 16 

Hangar Rates ................................................................................................................................................................ 16 

CONFLUENCE TECHNOLOGY CENTER ................................................................................................................... 18 

Video Conferencing Center ...................................................................................................................................... 18 

Office Leases ................................................................................................................................................................ 20 

CHELAN AIRPORT .......................................................................................................................................................... 20 

Important Note ................................................................................................................................................................. 20 

 



2 | P a g e

PANGBORN MEMORIAL AIRPORT 
FBO Services 

Service  Price Per/unit 
100LL  Market per gallon 
Jet A  Market per gallon 

Prist  $        0.07 per gallon of fuel 

Deicing Service Fee  $      50.00 per aircraft 
Deicing Fluid  $      25.00 per gallon 

After Hours Call Out Fee  $      65.00 per hour (1 hour minimum; see note 
below) 

Oxygen Service Fee  $         100.00 per aircraft 

Oxygen Service Fee  $      50.00 portable bottle 

Lavatory Service Fee  $      65.00 per aircraft (empty & fill) 

Lavatory Fill  $      45.00 per aircraft 

Catering Fee  $      50.00 plus actual costs & call out fee if 
applicable 

Aircraft Interior Vacuum  $      65.00 per hour 

Crew Car  $      20.00 1 hour use, waived with fuel purchase 
Coffee  $        5.00 per pot 

Ice  $        1.00 per bag 

Linens/Dishes  $      25.00 per service 
Axillary Power Unit (GPU)  $      50.00 for first hour, $25 each additional hour 

Pilot Supplies  Market market price 
Across Field Towing 

Service  $      50.00 each way 

Note:  Plus Applicable Taxes 

After Hours Note: After Hours Call Out Fee applies to anytime outside the hours of 8:00 AM to 
6:00 PM, seven days a week, excluding federal holidays. The Airport reserves the right to alter 
these hours.



3 | P a g e  
 

PANGBORN MEMORIAL AIRPORT 
Aviation Ramp Parking Fees 

 

Aircraft Type  Ramp Fee       
(per day)  

Minimum Fuel 
Purchase to Waive 

Ramp Fee (gal.) 
 Overnight Fee 

(per night)  

Helicopter (Avgas/Jet A)  $         10.00  15 (or top off)  $                        5.00  

Single Engine Piston 
(Avgas) - Aircraft under 
4,000 lbs. MTOW 

 $         10.00  15 (or top off)  $                        5.00  

Multi-Engine Piston 
(Avgas) - Aircraft 4,000 lbs. 
or over MTOW 

 $         20.00  40 (or top off)  $                        5.00  

Single Engine Turbo Prop 
(Jet A) - Aircraft under 
9,000 lbs. MTOW 

 $         20.00  75  $                      10.00  

Multi-Engine Turbo Prop 
(Jet A) - Aircraft 9,000 lbs. 
or over MTOW 

 $         35.00  100  $                      15.00  

Light Jet (Jet A ) - Aircraft 
under 17,000 lbs. MTOW  $         35.00  100  $                      20.00  

Medium Jet (Jet A) Aircraft 
between 17,001 and 25,000 
lbs. MTOW 

 $         60.00  300  $                      25.00  

Super Medium Jet (Jet A - 
Aircraft between 25,001 and 
35,000 lbs. MTOW 

 $         80.00  350  $                      30.00  

Large Jet (Jet A) - Aircraft 
between 35,001 and 60,000 
lbs. MTOW 

 $       100.00  400  $                      35.00  

Heavy Jet (Jet A) - Aircraft 
over 60,000 lbs. MTOW  $       150.00  450  $                      50.00  

 

Note:  Plus Applicable Taxes 

  



4 | P a g e

PANGBORN MEMORIAL AIRPORT 
Hangar & Tie Down Lease Rates 

Pangborn Flight Center 
Monthly Rates (5% Increase) 

Hangar Lease Rate 
Tee Hangars A & B  $      215.00 per month ( 16 UNITS) 

Tee Hangar B-13  $      233.00 per month 

Tee Hangar C  $      227.00 per month (8 UNITS) 

Tee Hangars C-17 & C-24  $      271.00 per month 

Tee Hangar D  $      271.00 per month (7 UNITS) 

Tee Hangar H  $      196.74 per month (7 UNITS) 

Tee Hangars H-1 & H-10  $      232.50 per month 

Hangar 3734  $      468.00 per month 

Hangar 3738  $      513.00 per month 

Storerooms  $        70.00 per month (6 UNITS) 

Tie-Down Lease  $        67.00 per month 

Fed Ex Hangar Bay - Suite A  To be Determined to be added in 2024 

Fed Ex Hangar Bay - Suite B To be Determined to be added in 2024 

Note:  Plus Applicable Taxes 

Sarah
Highlight



5 | P a g e

PANGBORN MEMORIAL AIRPORT 
Pangborn Flight Center 

T-Hangar Nightly Rates 5% Increase

Aircraft 
Type 

Single-
engine 
piston 

Multi-
engine 

piston or 
Turbo Prop 

Light Jet 
Aircraft 
under 

17,000 lbs. 
MTOW 

Medium Jet 
Aircraft 
between 

17,001 and 
35,000 lbs. 

MTOW 

Large Jet 
Aircraft over 
35,001 lbs. 

MTOW 

Nightly/ 
Daily 
Rate  $  26.00  $        26.00 N/A N/A N/A 

Note:  Plus Applicable Taxes. See “Aircraft Liability Insurance Coverage Minimums” for 
insurance requirements. Subject to space availability. 

Executive Flight 

Hangar Rates (10% Increase)

Aircraft 
Type 

Single-
engine 
piston 

Multi-
engine 

piston or 
Turbo 
Prop 

Light Jet 
Aircraft under 

17,000 lbs. 
MTOW 

Medium Jet 
Aircraft 
between 

17,001 and 
35,000 lbs. 

MTOW 

Large Jet 
Aircraft 

over 35,001 
lbs. MTOW 

Monthly 
Rate  $       385.00  $      660.00  $      1,650.00  $     2,420.00  $      3,300.00 

Nightly/ 
Daily 
Rate  $       165.00  $      165.00  $         165.00  $        330.00  $     550.00 

Rate includes the following services: Ground handling, refueling, and Ground Power Unit (GPU) 
usage, plus applicable taxes and fees. Subject to space availability. 

Sarah
Highlight

Sarah
Highlight



6 | P a g e  
 

Aircraft Liability Insurance Coverage Minimums 

 

Insurance coverage required on all monthly aircraft lease agreements. Minimum coverage 
includes combined single limit bodily injury (including pax. liability and death) and property 
damage liability. 

 

Annual Pre-Payments 
 

Annual pre-payment of hangar and tie-down leases will be discounted by 5% if payment for the 
year is received by January 31st.  

Aircraft 
Type 

Multi- or 
Single-
engine 
piston 

Turbo 
Prop 

Light Jet 
Aircraft under 

17,000 lbs. 
MTOW 

Medium Jet 
Aircraft 
between 

17,001 and 
35,000 lbs. 

MTOW 

Large Jet 
Aircraft 

over 
35,001 lbs. 

MTOW 
Minimum 
Coverage $1 million $2 million $20 million $25 million $25 million 



7 | P a g e  
 

PANGBORN MEMORIAL AIRPORT 
Airfield Charges 

 

Landing Fees 
 

Year Rate per 1,000 pounds 
2023  $                                         1.10  
2024  $                                         1.15  
2025  $                                         1.20  
2026  $                                         1.25  

 

Applies to revenue and transient flights with Maximum Gross Landing Weight over 12,500 
pounds. Plus Applicable Taxes. 

 

Fuel Flowage Fees 
 

Year Rate per Gallon 
2023  $                                         0.08  
2024  $                                         0.09  
2025  $                                         0.10  
2026  $                                         0.11  

 

Applies to non Regional Port owned fuel. Plus Applicable Taxes. 
 

Terminal Building Aviation Ramp: Wastewater Collection & Treatment 
 

Base Month Ready to Serve Charge Without Any Discharge 
$335.34 Per Month Divided by Number of Commercial Air Service Carriers 
Monthly Treatment Fees 
Billed to Commercial Air Service Carriers based on their published landing schedule for 
the month the treatment service was provided (percentage of published landings). 
Adjustment to Fee Schedule 
Pangborn Airport does not collect a processing fee for managing the bill. However, all 
costs charged by the Douglas County Sewer District will be passed along to the users of 
the Aviation Ramp as the Sewer District adjusts their rates and charges from time to time. 

 



8 | P a g e  
 

PANGBORN MEMORIAL AIRPORT 
Badge Fees 

 
Type  AOA  SIDA 

New Badge  $   12.00   $   12.00  
Badge Renewal  $     6.00   $     6.00  

Fingerprint Fee (In Addition to New/Renewal Charge)  N/A   $   72.00  
Lost/Stolen (Immediately Reported)  $   60.00   $   60.00  

Failure to Renew/Failure to Return Fee  $ 120.00   $ 120.00  
Failure to Promptly Report Lost Badge or Cancellation  $ 120.00   $ 120.00  

 
Badge Types: 

AOA – Airport Operations Area (Regular & Routine Access) 

SIDA – Security Identification Display Area  



9 | P a g e

PANGBORN MEMORIAL AIRPORT 
Terminal Parking Fees 

Type Rate Per 24 Hours 

Short Term Parking  $       13.00 
Long Term Parking  $       10.00 

Long Term Parking - Economy Lot  $     7.00 

Extended Stay Parking - Monthly Rate 
Non-Airline Related  $     150.00 

Airline Related  $       50.00 
Oversized Parking  $     125.00 

Note:  Plus Applicable Taxes.  
Month-to-Month Parking Agreements available upon request. 

Ticket Fee Schedule Rate 
Daily Non-Payment Fee + Cost of 

Parking  $       10.00 

Non-Payment Fee after 15 days  $       25.00 



10 | P a g e

PANGBORN MEMORIAL AIRPORT 
Terminal Building Rates: General 

Type Rate 
Car Rental Service Desk  $     33.43 

per sq. ft. per year (plus 10% of gross 
receipts) 5% Increase 

Café  $   350.00 per month 
Terminal Office Space  $     37.64 per sq ft. per year 5% Increase   

Car Wash Facility 
 $   750.00 per month (non-exclusive use) 

Commercial Vehicles 
 $     25.00 Application fee plus per passenger charge 

Hotel Courtesy Shuttles  $     25.00 Application fee only 
Commercial Shuttles 

Passenger Charge  $       2.00 per passenger picked up or dropped off 
Taxis/Other Passenger 

Charge  $       1.00 per trip picked up or dropped off 

Advertising 
 Varies 

please inquire about available advertising 
space 

Note:  Plus Applicable Taxes. Commercial Shuttles have capacity of 7 or more passengers. 
Taxis/Other vehicles have capacity of 6 or less passengers. 

Sarah
Highlight

Sarah
Highlight



11 | P a g e

PANGBORN MEMORIAL AIRPORT 
Terminal Building Rates: Airlines 

Signatory Airlines 

2023 & 2024 Proposed Rates 
Subject to consultation with airlines. 

Annual Lease Rate - Per Sq. Ft. 
Exclusive Area 2023 2024 

Ticketing, Baggage, & Office Areas  $         10.00  $ 12.00 

Ground Equipment Storage Area  $      5.00  $   7.50 

Non Exclusive Area 

Passenger Holding Area Pre-Screening  $      5.00  $   7.50 

Passenger Screening Area  $      5.00  $   7.50 

Passenger Holding Area  $      5.00  $   7.50 

Baggage Claim Area  $      5.00  $   7.50 

Note:  Plus Applicable Taxes 

Non-Signatory Airlines 
Per Turn Fee of $500 and $26.79 per sq. ft. for exclusive use areas in terminal building. 



12 | P a g e  
 

 

Incentive Program: New Commercial Air Service to New Destination 
 

Landing fees waived for a period of two years. 

Fuel flow fees waived for a period of two years. 

For signatory airlines rent for non-exclusive use areas will be waived for a period of two 
years. For non-signatory airlines the per turn fee will be waived for two years. Excludes 
ticketing, baggage, office, and ground equipment storage areas. 

The Regional Port will consider offering ground handling services for a fee. 

The Regional Port will provide marketing funds to support new service in the amount of 
$50,000 over a 12-month period. 

 
  



13 | P a g e

PANGBORN MEMORIAL AIRPORT 
GA Terminal Building Rates 

Rates will be determined upon completion of GA Terminal Building. 

Non-Aeronautical Buildings 

Address Square 
Footage Annual Rate 

3835 8th St SE 3,300 $9.04 per sq. ft. per year 

3351 2nd St SE 2,300 $10.83 per sq. ft. per year (3/1/22 - 2/28/23) 
$11.15 per sq. ft. per year (3/1/23 - 2/28/24) 

3355 2nd St SE 3,600 
$11.80 per sq. ft. per year (6/1/22 - 5/31/23) 

$11.90 per sq. ft. per year (6/1/23 - 5/31/24) 

3800 Airport Way #1 3,000 $10.57 per sq. ft. per year (non-aeronautical rate) 

3800 Airport Way #2 3,250 $3.03 per sq. ft. per year (aeronautical rate) 

 Note:  Plus Applicable Taxes 

Land Leases (3% Increase) 

Type Annual Rate Per Sq. Ft. 

Pangborn Business Park  $     0.36 

Aviation Ground  $     0.33 

Note:  Plus Applicable Taxes 

Sarah
Highlight



14 | P a g e  
 

 
 

Executive Hangar Site Development 
 

• Land lease rate starting at $0.35 per sq. ft. per year plus State Leasehold Tax. Lease rates 
go up yearly per CPI. 

• Capital Facility Charge applies – please inquire for more information. 
  



15 | P a g e  
 

 
 

MANSFIELD AIRPORT 
Lease Rates 
 

Type Rate 
Tie-Down Lease  $            10.00  per month 
Tie-Down Transient  $               2.00  per night 
Aviation Ground Lease  $               0.07  annual per SQFT 
Divided Site  $               0.09  annual per SQFT 
Authorization to Do Business  $          150.00  annual fee 

 

Note:  Plus Applicable Taxes 
 

Hangar Rates 
 

Hangar Site Number Dimension Square Feet Annual 
Lease Rate 

H1 76 x 505 38,361  $      2,685.27  
H2 100 x 155 15,500  $      1,085.00  
H3 100 x 155 15,500  $      1,085.00  
H4 100 x 155 15,500  $      1,085.00  
H5 130 x 155 20,150  $      1,410.50  
H6 80 x 150 12,000  $          840.00  
H7 80 x 150 12,000  $          840.00  
H8 80 x 170 13,600  $          952.00  
H9 80 x 170 13,600  $          952.00  
  50' x 70' 3,500  $          315.00  
  50' x 76' 3,920  $          352.80  

 

Sites H6 & H7 can be divided into 3 50' x 70' hangar sites each     

Sites H8 & H9 can be divided into 3 56' x 70' hangar sites each     

    

To divide the sites a taxiway would have to be created to provide access to the runway. 

The cost would be divided by 6 and paid by the tenants as the sites were leased.   

Note:  Plus Applicable Taxes 
  



16 | P a g e  
 

WATERVILLE AIRPORT 
Lease Rates 
 

Type Rate 
Tie-Down Lease  $            25.00  per month 
Tie-Down Transient  $              2.00  per night 
Aviation Ground Lease  $              0.10  annual per sq. ft. or FMV 
GA Hangar Space  $          100.00  per month 
Authorization to Do Business  $          200.00  annual fee 

 
Note:  Plus Applicable Taxes 
 

Hangar Rates 
 

Hangar Site  Dimension Square Feet Annual Lease Rate 

H1 58 x 72.5 4,205  $         482.03  
H2 54 x 72.5 3,915  $         391.50  
H3 54 x 72.5 3,915  $         391.50  
H4 58 x 72.5 4,205  $         482.03  
H5 58 x 72.5 4,205  $         482.03  
H6 55 x 72.5 3,988  $         398.75  
H7 55 x 72.5 3,988  $         398.75  
H8 58 x 72.5 4,205  $         482.03  
H9 58 x 72.5 4,205  $         482.03  

H10 55 x 72.5 3,988  $         398.75  
H11 55 x 72.5 3,988  $         398.75  
H12 58 x 72.5 4,205  $         482.03  
H13 70 x 75 5,250  $         525.00  
H14 63 x 75 4,725  $         472.50  
H15 60 x 75 4,500  $         450.00  
H16 60 x 75 4,500  $         450.00  
H17 50 x 75 3,750  $         375.00  
H18 50 x 75 3,750  $         375.00  
H19 50 x 75 3,750  $         375.00  

 

Note:  Plus Applicable Taxes 
  



17 | P a g e

Parcells Hangar Rate 
Suite A (48' x 58')  $        400.00 per month 
Suite B (48' x 38')  $        300.00 per month 
Entire Building  $          650.00 per month 

Note:  Plus Applicable Taxes. Published rate is the minimum amount charged per hangar site. 
For existing leases, rates will be adjusted as allowed by lease terms. 



18 | P a g e  
 

 
 

CONFLUENCE TECHNOLOGY CENTER 
 

Video Conferencing Center 
 

Meeting Rooms 

Rates include setup & clean up 
Type Half Day Full Day 

Single Meeting Room  $                    321.00   $                  583.00  
Double Meeting Room  $                    641.00   $              1,166.00  
Quad Meeting Room  $                 1,282.00   $              2,331.00  
Executive Board Room  $                    298.00   $                  595.00  
Small Conference Room  $                    170.00   $                  340.00  

 
Other Spaces 

Exclusive Use 
Type Rate Per Hour 

Indoor Patio  $                                                           38.00  
Kitchen  $                                                           38.00  

 

Staff Fees 
One hour minimum Tech Fee for all meetings using technology 
Type Rate Per Hour 

Staff (Outside 8-5, M-F)  $                                                           34.00  
Technician (8-5, M-F)  $                                                           77.00  
Technician (Outside 8-5, M-F)  $                                                        111.00  

 
  



19 | P a g e

Advanced Services (5% Increase) 

Type Service Fee Recurring Fee 

Video 
Tech 
Fee 

Audio Conference  $        38.00  n/a  n/a 
Basic Virtual Meeting (no cameras)  $        38.00  n/a  n/a 
Static Virtual Meeting (static camera 
view)  $        74.00  $      38.00  n/a 
Advanced Virtual Meeting (camera 
operator)  $        74.00  $      38.00 Yes 
Audio Recording  $        74.00  n/a  n/a 

Audio/Content Recording  $      108.00  n/a  n/a 

Audio/Static Video Recording  $      216.00  n/a  n/a 

Audio/Video Recording  $      108.00  n/a  Yes 
Audio Visual Equipment - Included in Facility Contract 

Beverage Services 
Capacity Half Day Full Day 

Up to 50 guests  $        40.00  $      80.00 
51-100 guests  $        80.00  $         160.00 
101-150 guests  $      160.00  $         320.00 
151-200 guests  $      320.00  $         480.00 

Note:  Plus Applicable Taxes 

Full Day: M-F, between 8:00AM – 5:00PM and 5 or more hours 

Half Day: M-F, 8:00AM – 12:30PM or 12:30PM – 5:00PM 

After Hours: Anytime outside of M-F 8:00AM – 5:00PM 

20% Discount on Room Rental Fees for CTC Building Tenants, Educational, Governmental & 
Non-profits entities 

Sarah
Highlight



20 | P a g e  
 

 

Office Leases 
 

Confluence Technology Center - Office Leases 
Base Rate per Sq. Ft. 

Suite 2023 2024 
Confluence Technology Center  $                    25.00   $            25.00  
Confluence Technology Center - South (IB3)  $                    25.00   $            25.00  

 

 

 

CHELAN AIRPORT 
 

Type Monthly Rate 
Open Field Storage  $                                      55.00  

Bay Storage  $                                      80.00  
 

Note:  Plus Applicable Taxes 
 

Important Note 
The Regional Port reserves the right to review and adjust all rates on an annual basis. For 
leased space that requires Regional Port investments, the Regional Port reserves the right to 
negotiate lease rates with the tenant. 



Y:\10 - Commission Meetings\2023 Agendas\10-10-2023\Working Documents\2nd Amendment to Microsoft Phase I - Memo.docx 

 
Memo 
To:  Board of Directors 

From:  Stacie de Mestre 

Date:  October 5, 2023 

Re: Second Amendment to Microsoft Phase I Development and 
Reimbursement Agreement 

The Microsoft Phase I Development and Reimbursement Agreement 
was executed on June 24, 2022.  The scope of work and budget were 
based off of RH2 technical memos dated June 8, 2022 and May 17, 
2022.  Many assumptions on design criteria, schedule, and property 
acquisition were made in the technical memos.  Over the past year the 
projects have evolved, schedules have changed, and scopes have 
been refined.  Staff wanted to memorialize the progress and changes 
with Microsoft via an Amendment. 

Please see attached for the Second Amendment to Microsoft Phase I 
Development and Reimbursement Agreement.  In summary the 
amendment: 

- Does not change the overall project budget cap 
- Updates the budget based on incurred and committed costs to 

date 
- Clarifies and phases the completion deadline(s) 
- Adds permitting to the reservoir site geo-tech scope 
- Breaks out Production Well #2 into a separate line item 
- Updates the map for all Malaga Water System Improvements 

Since the overall agreement amount is not changing, Board approval 
is not required.    



 

ADDENDUM TO REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 

{MKAW0183341.DOC;1\00080.005076\}060900 1 

SECOND ADDENDUM TO PHASE 1 DEVELOPMENT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS SECOND ADDENDUM TO PHASE 1 DEVELOPMENT AND REIMBURSEMENT 
AGREEMENT (“Second Addendum”) is made this date by and between the Chelan Douglas 
Regional Port Authority (“CDRPA”), and Microsoft Corporation, a Washington corporation 
(“Developer”), sometimes collectively referred to as the “Parties” or individually as a “Party.” 
 

RECITALS 
 
A. Effective June 24, 2022, the Parties entered into the Phase 1 Development and 

Reimbursement Agreement (the “Agreement”).  The Parties subsequently entered a 
First Addendum to Phase 1 Development and Reimbursement Agreement amending 
Section 4 of the Agreement.  The Agreement and the First Addendum are collectively 
referred to herein as the “Agreement”.   

 
B. All defined terms in this Second Addendum shall have the same meaning as set forth in 

the Agreement. 
 

C. The Parties desire to amend the Agreement to reflect the status of the Phase 1 
Improvements.   
 

AGREEMENT 
 

Now therefore, in light of the above Recitals, which are incorporated herein by this 
reference as part of the agreement of the Parties, and in consideration of the mutual covenants 
set out below, the Parties agree as follows: 

 
1. Tech Memo.  The Agreement incorporates and relies on prior Technical Memoranda 
prepared by RH2 Engineering, attached as Exhibits “A” and “B” to the Agreement (collectively, 
the “Prior Tech Memos”).  Attached to this Second Addendum as Exhibit “X” is an updated 
Technical Memorandum prepared by RH2 Engineering dated September 12, 2023 (“Updated 
Tech Memo”).  The Parties agree that (a) in the event of a conflict between the Updated Tech 
Memo and the Prior Tech Memos, that the information contained in the Updated Tech Memo 
shall control; and (b) in the event of a conflict between the Agreement and this Second 
Addendum, the terms and conditions of this Second Addendum shall control.  Project numbers 
used in Exhibit “X” or in this Second Addendum correspond to the Project numbers identified in 
the Updated Tech Memo. 
 
2. In light of the Updated Tech Memo, the Parties agree the Agreement is modified and 
updated as follows: 

 
a. With regard to Projects 1 and 2, a single test well has been completed but not 

yet tested, rather than two test wells as originally contemplated by the Parties.  



 

Addendum to Phase 1 Development  2 
and Reimbursement Agreement 
4879-5813-2862, v. 1 

The CDRPA shall continue to seek agreements, yet to be negotiated, with private 
or public property owners for the placement and testing of a second test well. 
 

b. With regard to Projects 3A and 3B, the locations for the reservoir identified in 
the Prior Tech Memos did not work, for a variety of reasons.  The CDRPA located 
and has real property interests for a new reservoir site under contract to 
purchase (commonly referred to as the “Ford Property”).  The purchase of the 
Ford Property is subject to a number of significant, outstanding contingencies.  
The acquisition of the Ford Property is currently scheduled to occur no later than 
January 31, 2024, assuming the contingencies are satisfied or waived and the 
acquisition actually closes (this is in regards to Project 3B).  The Ford Property 
involves more property than originally anticipated, along with an access 
easement (the additional costs are reflected in the revised budget, please see 
Paragraph 6 of this Second Addendum).  Construction of a reservoir on the Ford 
Property will also involve significant site work.  A geotechnical exploration for 
the Ford Property has been completed and found to be satisfactory. 
 

c. With regard to Project 14, this Project will be broken into two Projects identified 
in the Updated Tech Memo as Project 14A (the first production well) and Project 
14B (the second production well).  Real property rights necessary to complete 
Project 14A are in place (the location of the first production well is located on 
real property owned by the District). 

 
d. With regard to Project 4, the construction of Project 4 is anticipated to be 

completed on or before the Completion Deadline in the Agreement. 
 
3. The Completion Deadline, as defined in the Agreement, is January 1, 2024, subject to 
Sections 2(a) and 4 of the Agreement.  Project 4 will be completed prior to the Completion 
Deadline.  With regard to the remaining Projects listed as part of the Phase I Improvements, the 
Parties agree as follows: 
 

a. Projects 1 and 2 as to the first test well will be completed by the Completion 
Deadline.   
 

b. Projects 1 and 2 shall continue beyond the Completion Deadline with regard to a 
second test well site.  The CDRPA shall investigate a second test well site and 
attempt to secure the real property interests and conduct the test at a second 
well site (which is not yet identified) through December 31, 2024 (the additional 
costs to evaluate and secure a second test well site are reflected in the revised 
budget, please see Paragraph 6 of this Second Addendum).   

 
c. Projects 3A and 3B shall continue beyond the Completion Deadline.  It is 

anticipated that closing to secure the Ford Property for the future reservoir site 



 

Addendum to Phase 1 Development  3 
and Reimbursement Agreement 
4879-5813-2862, v. 1 

(to be owned by the District) will occur not later than January 31, 2024.  The 
Parties agree that Project 3A includes design, preliminary site work, permitting 
and additional investigation, including securing the pipeline route to and from 
the Ford Property (the additional costs are reflected in the revised budget, 
please see Paragraph 6 of this Second Addendum).  Project 3A shall be 
completed upon issuance of a Conditional Use Permit to construct the reservoir 
on the Ford Property, provided the terms and conditions of the Conditional Use 
Permit are acceptable to the CDRPA, the District and Developer.  It is anticipated, 
but not required, that the Conditional Use Permit will be issued by June 30, 
2024.  The actual construction of the reservoir is outside the scope of the 
Agreement and this Second Addendum and will be the subject of a separate, 
future reimbursement agreement, yet to be negotiated.   

 
d. If the test of the first test well (located on District property) is approved by the 

CDRPA and District and the CDRPA and District agree to proceed with a 
production well (Project 14A), then the Parties agree that Project 14A (the first 
production well) will become part of the Phase 1 Improvements and the CDRPA 
shall proceed with the development of Final Plans for Project 14A.  The CDRPA 
shall exercise due diligence and proceed in good faith so that Project 14A is 
completed on or before December 31, 2024. 

 
e. Nothing herein amends the limitations set forth in Section 2(a) and Section 4 of 

the Agreement (as amended by the First Addendum), and the failure of the 
CDRPA to complete any of the Projects mentioned above in this Paragraph 3 of 
the Second Addendum, shall not be a default of the Agreement, as amended, 
and shall not impact the Developer’s reimbursement obligations set forth in the 
Agreement, as amended by the Second Addendum.  Nothing in the Agreement 
or this Second Addendum shall be construed as obligating or otherwise requiring 
the CDRPA to acquire any real property interests through the exercise of 
eminent domain, or otherwise. This will also affirm that the CDRPA makes no 
representations or warranties regarding the rate of delivery or the volume of 
water resulting from the Phase 1 Improvements.   

 
4. The Parties acknowledge that MSFT and the District entered an Industrial Water Service 
Agreement effective September 19, 2023.  
 
5. The Agreement anticipated a singular approval step associated with the Final Plans for 
the Phase 1 Improvements; however, there will be multiple Final Plans, one for every Project 
that involves a construction contract bid pursuant to the Public Works Laws of Washington 
State (e.g. if approved as set forth above, Final Plans will be developed for Project 14A, the first 
production well).  The Final Plans for Project 4 have already been approved by the District.  The 
Final Plans for each Project involving a construction contract bid pursuant to the Public Works 



 

Addendum to Phase 1 Development  4 
and Reimbursement Agreement 
4879-5813-2862, v. 1 

Laws of Washington State will need to be reviewed and approved by the CDRPA and the District 
using the plan approval process outlined in the Interlocal Agreement.   

 
6. The Parties desire to update the Phase 1 Budget to reflect the status of the Phase 1 
Improvements and this Second Addendum.  The CDRPA and MSFT agree that an additional line 
item in the amount of $300,000 shall be included in the Phase 1 Budget to address the 
administrative costs incurred by the CDRPA associated with the the Agreement, as amended by 
this Second Addendum. The Parties agree that the Phase 1 Budget attached hereto as Exhibit 
“Y” and incorporated herein by this reference, shall replace the Phase 1 Budget attached as 
Exhibit “C” to the Agreement.   

 
7. The CDRPA received a Notice of Award from the Department of Commerce dated May 
13, 2023, related to the Malaga Industrial Park Waterline Extension Project in the amount of 
$1,498,650 (after accounting for the administrative fee charged by the Department of 
Commerce).  Conditioned on entering a Grant Agreement with the Department of Commerce, 
the CDRPA will endeavor to apply all of the grant funds received toward the allowable 
components of the Phase 1 Improvements (“Grant Agreement”).  Other than the amount of the 
grant funds that may be available to the CDRPA under the Grant Agreement ($1,498,650, rather 
than $1,400,000), Section 9 of the Agreement shall remain in effect.  The revised Phase 1 
Budget attached as Exhibit “Y” indicates a revised budget that exceeds the Project Cap if the 
Grant Agreement is not entered and the grants funds are not available for the Projects.  In the 
event the CDRPA does not enter the Grant Agreement, then the CDRPA shall be under no 
obligation to expend any funds in excess of the Project Cap.   

 
8. A updated project map is attached hereto as Exhibit “Z”, which reflects the current 
status of the Projects associated with the Phase 1 Improvements.   
 
9. This Second Addendum is conditioned on the CDRPA entering an addendum with the 
Malaga Water District addressing the same or similar matters as set forth in this Second 
Addendum. 



 

Addendum to Phase 1 Development  5 
and Reimbursement Agreement 
4879-5813-2862, v. 1 

 
10. Except as modified by this Addendum, the Parties hereby affirm and ratify all terms and 
conditions of the Agreement.  In the event of a conflict between the terms of the Agreement, 
and this Addendum, the terms and conditions associated with this Addendum shall control.  
The effective date of this Addendum shall be the date of the last signature below.  This 
Addendum may be signed in counterparts and shall be binding on the  
 
DATED:  DATED:  
 
CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL MICROSOFT CORPORATION 
PORT AUTHORITY 
 
 
By:   By:   
 James M. Kuntz, Chief Executive Officer    
   Name:  
 
   Title:  



 

Addendum to Phase 1 Development  6 
and Reimbursement Agreement 
4879-5813-2862, v. 1 

EXHIBIT “X” 
Updated Technical Memorandum 

 



 

Addendum to Phase 1 Development  7 
and Reimbursement Agreement 
4879-5813-2862, v. 1 

 



 

Addendum to Phase 1 Development  8 
and Reimbursement Agreement 
4879-5813-2862, v. 1 

EXHIBIT “Y” 
Updated Budget 

 



 

Addendum to Phase 1 Development  9 
and Reimbursement Agreement 
4879-5813-2862, v. 1 

EXHIBIT “Z” 
Malaga Water District Water System Improvements 

 



Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Starting Term Base Rent/Month

State of WA Military 

Department 

One Campbell Parkway 

East Wenatchee, WA
60,818 sq ft 9/1/2023 9/1/2023 - 08/31/2033 $29,141.96

Renewal Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term Base Rent/Month

Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Ending

Pybus Market 

Charitable 

Foundation 

3 North Worthen Street 

Suite 202

Wenatchee, WA 

642 Sq Ft 9/30/2023

KRCI, LLC.
Land Lease

Cashmere, WA 

Geographic ID: 

231905110500
9/30/2023

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority - Lease Report

Leases & Renewals - Reporting Period SEPTEMBER 2023  |  CDRPA Related 

Meeting: OCTOBER 10, 2023

 

New Leases 

Lease Renewals

Base Rent/Month

$2,762.50

$500.00

Tenants Moving Out

None Reported for this Period

Executive Director's Authority to Sign Leases

Lease terms of five years duration or less.

Lease payments of $5,000 per month or less.



Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Starting Term Base Rent/Month

Renewal Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term Base Rent/Month

Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Ending

None Reported for this Period

None Reported for this Period

None Reported for this Period

Lease terms of five years duration or less.

Lease payments of $5,000 per month or less.

Tenants Moving Out

Base Rent/Month

Executive Director's Authority to Sign Leases

Lease Renewals

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority - Lease Report

Leases & Renewals - Reporting Period SEPTEMBER 2023  |  CTC Related 

Meeting: OCTOBER 10, 2023

 

New Leases 



Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Starting Term Base Rent/Month

Renewal Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term Base Rent/Month

Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Ending

None Reported for this Period

None Reported for this Period

None Reported for this Period

Lease terms of five years duration or less.

Lease payments of $5,000 per month or less.

Tenants Moving Out

Base Rent/Month

Lease Renewals

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority - Lease Report

Leases & Renewals - Reporting Period SEPTEMBER 2023  |  AVIATION Related 

Meeting: OCTOBER 10, 2023

 

New Leases 



SQFT or Acres

1070 sq ft 

126 sq ft 

290 sq ft 

Kelly Property Barn

Chelan, WA 
Barn 

Space Available Details 

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority

Current Available Space for Lease

Meeting: October 10.10.2023

 

Current Available Space for Lease

CTC South

Suite #108
Unfurnished & Windowless 

CTC South

Suite #107
Unfurnished 

CTC

Suite #133 
Furnished 



SQFT or Acres

9,240 sq ft

20,115 sq ft 

9,430 sq ft 

9,855 sq ft 

38,119 sq ft 

8,810 sq ft 

CTC

Suite 201

Available

March 1, 2024

Available

November 1, 2023

Available

March 1, 2024

CTC

Suite LL2 

CTC

Suite LL1

CTC

Third Floor 

Available

November 1, 2023

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority

Space Available Soon for Lease 

Meeting: October 10.10.2023

 

Current Available Space for Lease

Space Available Details 

Note: :  For CTC Spaces, if less than the full floor is leased a building load factor of 13% will be added to the square feet. 

CTC

Suite 202

Available TBD 

Pending fire alarm work

IB-5
Available

March 1, 2024



Thank You Card from Wenatchee Valley Dispute Resolution Center 



 
The DOH Associates 
ARCHITECTS & PLANNERS
A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CORPORAT ION

           

TELEPHONE 509.662.4781  C  FAX 509.663.3253  C  7 N. WENATCHEE AVENUE, SUITE 500  C  WENATCHEE, WA 98801

September 29, 2023

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority

One Campbell Parkway, Suite A Subject: #2229.1 ‐ Cashmere Mill Site

East Wenatchee, WA 98802 Sidewalk Restoration

Attention: Mr. Ron Russ, Facilities and Maintenance Director

Ladies / Gentlemen:

At your request we have reviewed the conditions at the Cashmere Mill Site and are outlining several

possible steps that would help to improve the condition at the sidewalks.  To summarize our report

we believe there are 3 options available, sealing the concrete to prevent further damage, repairing the

concrete surface, and replacing the concrete.

The cause of the spalling appears to be from the deicers used during the winter.  The evidence is that

areas of the walks that were not impacted included the sidewalks that were not near building entries

and likely not subjected to deicer, but had snow accumulation, and areas near building entries that

were covered and did not receive snow accumulation, were not impacted. 

The following report details the options and the site conditions.  If you have any questions, please

contact me at your convenience.

Sincerely,
THE DOH ASSOCIATES, PS

Paul R. Coppock

Principal

enclosure



September 29, 2023

Cashmere Mill Site Sidewalk Restoration

Page 1

ARCHITECTS & PLANNERS  C  The DOH Associates, PS  C  WENATCHEE, WASHINGTON

SIDEWALK RESTORATION

Location

The project is located at 5431 and 5441 Sunset Highway, Cashmere, Washington and is owned by the

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority.  The site includes two buildings, Building A at 5441, the

northerly building, and Building B at 5431, the easterly building.

The primary building sidewalks front the north side of the buildings and the east side of the buildings,

serving the building entries.  There are small concrete landings at the south and west service doors to

the building and a large concrete loading slab under cover between the two buildings.  Additionally,

there is a walk along Sunset Highway that was completed with the road project and a walk along Mill

Road that was completed with the building project.

Existing Conditions

On site observations of the concrete sidewalks reveal that the primary sidewalks, and the portion of

some of the traffic curbs have significant spalling.  Spalling is a situation where the top surface of the

concrete  flakes off.   Areas of  the primary sidewalk under cover do not show significant signs of

damage.  Likewise, the Mill Road and Sunset Highway sidewalks do not show damage.

Photo records show the primary sidewalk being completed in May of 2019 and the Mill Road sidewalk

being completed in June of 2019.  Mix designs from AAA Ready Mix for the exterior work were listed

at 4,500 psi and 6% entrained air.  In comparison, the foundation design was for 3,500 psi concrete and

2% air.  Testing of exterior concrete is not required by code and no core samples were taken to evaluate

the actual strength and air entrainment.

Probable Cause

Concrete is a porus material and water is absorbed into the concrete surface.  When that water freezes

inside concrete the water expands and breaks the concrete surface away.  By using a higher strength

concrete the concrete can resist the forces better and by air entraining the concrete, microscopic bubbles

are formed in the concrete that provides room for the water to expand.  Concrete gets stronger over

time and newer (or “Green”) concrete is more susceptible to spalling in freezing temperatures.

The areas in question are occurring at the entries to the buildings.  We understand from our on‐site

discussions that deicers were used during the winter.  Because the spalling is only occurring near the

building entries and not on the street sidewalks, it appears that the concrete is resisting the normal

freeze thaw process, but is not able to resist the higher volumes of water in freezing weather.

Deicers increase the volume of water and the saturation rate.  Typically this water is a brine with a

lower freezing temperature, but is typically absorbed into the concrete when weather is freezing and

as temperatures drop, it refreezes inside the concrete.  Normally water forms when temperatures are



September 29, 2023

Cashmere Mill Site Sidewalk Restoration

Page 2

ARCHITECTS & PLANNERS  C  The DOH Associates, PS  C  WENATCHEE, WASHINGTON

higher and the concrete is warmer.  Concrete mass stores thermal energy and temperatures swings are

from above  freezing  to  freezing are  slower.   Also,  snow melts  slower at  slightly above  freezing,

minimizing water, and faster at higher temperatures when freezing is less likely.

When deicers are used, the slush and water should be removed from the concrete at a frequency that

would prevent significant saturation of the concrete.  A better solution would be to remove the snow

manually and apply sand to the surface.

Restoration Options

There is no real good solution to repairing concrete, particularly in our environment of freeze/thaw

conditions.  However, we have outlined 3 approaches, 1) Preserve what you have, 2) Attempt to repair

the surface of the concrete, and 3) Replace the concrete.

Option 1, Apply a Sealer to the Concrete Sidewalks 

Applying a sealer to the top of the concrete will help the concrete resist the absorption of water and

minimize the spalling.  This will help to preserve the concrete in it’s current condition, but a sealer

does have a life span and should be resealed every year or two depending upon traffic.

1A)  Apply a seal coat to the Mill Road and Sunset Highway walks, the loading slab, the

trash enclosure slab and the miscellaneous door landings.

Probable Item Cost: $29,800

1B) Apply a seal coat to the better areas of the of the primary sidewalk, approximately 3,700

sf to minimize futher deterioration.

Probable Item Cost: $11,250

1C)  Apply a seal coat to the entire primary sidewalk areas to minimize further deterioration.

Probable Item Cost: $12,750

Item 1A is recommended to be completed regardless of which option is selected and is the only item

that addresses the concrete that is remaining in good conditions.   

Item 1B is recommended to be completed if other options are chosen to address the worst areas of

the concrete.  Sealing the worst areas of concrete would be included in that work item.

Item 1C would address the primary area of concern and provide full coverage when included with

Item 1A.  If other options are taken, the seal coat is included in that work. 

Option 2, Resurface the Concrete Sidewalks

Resurfacing the concrete would change cover up the spalled concrete and create a more consistent

appearance for the panels that are resurfaced.  This option may not weather well in the winter and



September 29, 2023

Cashmere Mill Site Sidewalk Restoration

Page 3

ARCHITECTS & PLANNERS  C  The DOH Associates, PS  C  WENATCHEE, WASHINGTON

it may also not create a uniform appearance.  Below are the options for resurfacing:

2A) Select a small area, preferably at the northwest end of the primary walk to conduct a test

of the resurfacing.  Scarify the concrete, apply a concrete resurfacer, and apply a seal

coat to ½ of the test area.

Probable Item Cost: $8,000

2B) Select the worst conditions along the face of Buildings A and B, approximately 800 sf,

and scarify the concrete, apply a concrete resurfacer, and apply a seal coat.

Probable Item Cost: $32,800

2C) Scarify the concrete, apply a concrete resufacer, and apply a seal coat to the entire area,

approximately 4,500 sf, of the primary sidewalk north and east of Buildings A and B.

Probable Item Cost: $137,500

Item 2A is recommended to evaluate in advance if either of the following options are feasible.

If the resufacer performs well in the winter we would have assurances to move forward with

Option 2.  

Item 2B is dependant upon the performance of Item 2A and if the coloration of Item 2A matches

the concrete to remain, this may be a valid option.  Cost would be Item 2A, plus Item 2B.

Item 2C is also dependant upon the performance of Item 2A.  If the coloration of Item 2A does

not match up with the remaining concrete walk, then resurfacing all of the primary sidewalk

for uniformity would be completed under this option.  Cost would be Item 2A, plus Item 2C.

Option 3, Replace the Concrete Sidewalks

Replacement of the concrete sidewalks is the most certain way to improve the appearance and

performance of the concrete sidewalks.  Presented below are two options for replacement:

3A)  Select the worst conditions along the face of Buildings A and B, approximately 800 sf,

remove the concrete, ensure sub‐base is proper and prep for thickened sidewalk edges,

repour and finish walk, test concrete and apply a cure/seal coat.

Probable Item Cost: $78,550

3B) Remove concrete sidewalks from the entire area, approximately 4,500 sf, of the primary

sidewalk north and east of Buildings A and B, ensure sub‐base is proper and prep for

thickened sidewalk edges, repour and finish walk, test concrete and apply a cure/seal

coat.

Probable Item Cost: $331,350



September 29, 2023

Cashmere Mill Site Sidewalk Restoration

Page 4

ARCHITECTS & PLANNERS  C  The DOH Associates, PS  C  WENATCHEE, WASHINGTON

Item 3A would replace the worst areas of the concrete sidewalk.  It is anticipated there would

be some color differences, but that they would be better than the resurfacing option.

Item 3B would replace the entire primary concrete, provide a uniform finish and provide the

best appearance and performance for the long term.

Cost Selection Matrix

1A 1B 1C 2A 2B 2C 3A 3B

Seal remaining

walks

1A $29,800 $29,800 $29,800 $29,800 $29,800

Seal best of

entry walks

1B $11,250 $11,250

Seal all entry

walks

1C $12,750

Test resurfacing

option

2A $8,000 $8,000 $8,000 $8,000

Resurface worst

of entry walks

2B $32,800

Resurface all

entry walks 2C

$137,500

Replace worst

of entry walks 3A

$78,550

Replace all of

entry walks

3B $331,350

Total Cost

N/A N/A

$42,550

N/A

$81,850 $175,300 $127,600 $369,150

Recommended Project Budget:

Seal all Entry and Street Walks:   $42,550

Resurface Worst Conditions, Seal All Walks: $81,850

Resurface All Entry Walks, Seal All Walks: $173,300

Replace Worst Conditions, Seal All Walks: $127,600

Replace All Entry Walks, Seal All Walks: $369,150



Q1 2023 Q1 2022 Q1 2021 Q1 2020 Q1 2019
January 12,507.29$            14,249.50$            140.00$         9,504.35$      10,088.42$      

February 15,847.17$            7,768.25$              175.00$         11,263.03$    9,830.21$        
March 28,945.66$            13,451.80$            6,079.24$      15,523.71$    20,696.16$      

1st Qtr Total 57,300.12$            35,469.55$            6,394.24$      36,291.09$    40,614.79$      

Q2 2023 Q2 2022 Q2 2021 Q2 2020 Q2 2019
April 19,080.25$            17,580.07$            7,033.14$      -$                16,936.67$      
May 24,650.94$            20,162.65$            4,493.45$      418.00$         37,688.47$      
June 16,472.16$            11,578.60$            4,369.26$      2,302.78$      13,294.77$      

2nd Qtr Total 60,203.35$            49,321.32$            15,895.85$    2,720.78$      67,919.91$       

Q3 2023 Q3 2022 Q3 2021 Q3 2020 Q3 2019
July 13,295.49$            12,216.75$            4,359.46$      -$                18,618.12$      

August 14,559.93$            13,483.30$            6,770.08$      1,207.40$      18,383.73$      
September 21,458.72$            21,822.30$            729.08$         1,144.00$      14,042.10$      

3rd Qtr Total 49,314.14$            47,522.35$            11,858.62$    2,351.40$      51,043.95$      

Q4 2023 Q4 2022 Q4 2021 Q4 2020 Q4 2019
October 11,004.99$            27,146.90$    1,247.50$      38,908.17$      

November 7,927.87$              8,135.96$      509.50$         16,470.41$      
December 15,671.47$            6,759.49$      2,586.10$      9,814.57$        

4th Qtr Total 34,604.33$            42,042.35$    4,343.10$      66,330.75$      

YTD 2022 YTD 2021 YTD 2020 YTD 2019
YTDTotal 166,817.61$          166,917.55$          76,191.06$    45,706.37$    225,909.40$    

CTC Meeting Center Revenue Report

*This does not include the $75,000 per year from the Chelan PUD



20-Feb
All Day President's Day - Office Closed CDRPA Staff 

Date: Time: Event: Attending: 
10-Oct 9:00am CDRPA Board Meeting Board of Directors; Staff

12-Oct 9:00am-11:00am CDTC Board Meeting Commissioner DeRock

17-Oct 6:30am WVCC Board Meeting Commissioners Spurgeon & Etherington

19-21 Oct All Day PMA Fresh Summit Commissioner Etherington & de Mestre

24-Oct 9:00am CDRPA Board Meeting Board of Directors; Staff

24-26 Oct All Day 
Infrastructure Assistance Coordinating Council 

Conference
Commissioner Baldwin 

24-26 Oct All Day WSCAA Annual Conference - WAMA

26-Oct 2:30pm-3:30pm Regional Sports Complex - Phase I Report Commissioner Huffman, de Mestre & Lammert

26-27 Oct All Day Small Ports Seminar
Commissioners Etherington, Baldwin and Huffman; Kuntz, 

Lough & Deenik

Date: Time: Event: Attending: 
7-Nov 10:00am-4:00pm CDRPA Board Retreat Board of Directors; Staff

9-Nov 9:00am-11:00am CDTC Board Meeting Commissioner DeRock

14-Nov 9:00am CDRPA Board Meeting Board of Directors; Staff

21-Nov 6:30am WVCC Board Meeting Commissioners Spurgeon & Etherington

23-Nov All Day Thanksgiving Holiday - Office Closed CDRPA Staff 

24-Nov All Day Thanksgiving Holiday - Office Closed CDRPA Staff 

28-Nov 9:00am CDRPA Board Meeting Board of Directors; Staff

Date: Time: Event: Attending: 
6-8 Dec All Day WPPA 2023 Annual Meeting Commissioner Baldwin, Spurgeon & DeRock

8-Dec 2:30pm Community Leadership Program Presentation Jim Kuntz

12-Dec 9:00am CDRPA Board Meeting Board of Directors; Staff

3-Dec 2:30pm-4:00pm
Douglas County Community Leadership 

Advisory Group

Commissioner DeRock, Commissioner Huffman and Kuntz; 

Advisory Group members

14-Dec 9:00am-11:00am CDTC Board Meeting Commissioner DeRock

19-Dec 6:30am WVCC Board Meeting Commissioners Spurgeon & Etherington

25-Dec All Day Christmas - Office Closed CDRPA Staff 

26-Dec All Day Christmas - Office Closed CDRPA Staff 

Wenatchee Valley Chamber of 

Commerce

All Offices

Location:
Hilton: Vancouver

CTC

CTC

All Offices

Executive Flight

 Campbell's Resort

NOVEMBER 2023
Location:

CTC

Wenatchee Valley Chamber of 

Commerce

CTC

All Offices

All Offices

CTC

DECEMBER 2023

Residence Inn 

Executive Flight

CTC

CTC

OCTOBER 2023

CTC

Wenatchee Valley Chamber of 

Commerce

Anaheim, CA 

Location:

2023 CDRPA Calendar of Events 

Icicle Village Resort - 

Leavenworth 

CTC

Wenatchee Convention Center 

10/5/2023 11:50 AM


	00.02.A. 09-26-23 Meeting Minutes.pdf
	10.10.23 CDRPA Meeting Packet.pdf
	10.02.23 Volaire Aviation Payment History.pdf
	Sheet1

	Binder1.pdf
	00.00.A. Agenda - 10.10.23 Working Document
	00.02.B. CDRPA Summary Page and Check Registers 2023-39 through 41
	20231005094323385.pdf
	Check Register 2023-38 09.15.23.pdf
	Check Register 2023-39 09.30.23 PR.pdf
	Check Register 2023-40 09.30.23.pdf
	Check Register 2023-41 09.30.23 PR.pdf

	00.03.A Lot 8 Proposal Port Authority - Dorry Foster & Steve Robinson
	01.01.A. - Memo - Option to Purchase Chelan PUD HQ Property Lot 8
	01.01.B. Memorandum of Agreement POCC CCPUD Option to Purchase
	01.02.A. Memo - Volaire Aviation Contract with Supporting Documents
	01.03.A. Memo - Loaned Executive with Supporting Documents
	20231003093538635.pdf
	20230930_ED NCWEDD_v1.0.pdf

	01.04.A. Memo - PSA Addendum 1 Ford Property with Supporting Documents
	20231005094136393.pdf
	Addendum No. 1 to Purchase and Sale Agreement 4857-9069-7850 v.2.pdf

	01.05.A. 2023 10.10 NCESD Memo
	To:
	From:
	cc:
	Date:
	Re:

	02.06.A. CDRPA EPA Brownfields Closeout Fact Sheet_Final
	02.07.A.  2023 Rates and Charges Final with Notes
	PANGBORN MEMORIAL AIRPORT
	FBO Services
	Aviation Ramp Parking Fees
	Hangar & Tie Down Lease Rates
	Monthly Rates
	T-Hangar Nightly Rates
	Hangar Rates

	Aircraft Liability Insurance Coverage Minimums
	Annual Pre-Payments
	Airfield Charges
	Landing Fees
	Fuel Flowage Fees
	Terminal Building Aviation Ramp: Wastewater Collection & Treatment
	Badge Fees
	Terminal Parking Fees
	Terminal Building Rates: General
	Terminal Building Rates: Airlines
	Signatory Airlines
	Non-Signatory Airlines
	Incentive Program: New Commercial Air Service to New Destination
	GA Terminal Building Rates
	Non-Aeronautical Buildings
	Land Leases
	Executive Hangar Site Development

	MANSFIELD AIRPORT
	Lease Rates
	Hangar Rates

	WATERVILLE AIRPORT
	Lease Rates
	Hangar Rates

	CONFLUENCE TECHNOLOGY CENTER
	Video Conferencing Center
	Office Leases

	CHELAN AIRPORT
	Important Note

	02.08.A. Memo - 2nd Amendment to Microsoft Phase I
	02.08.B. Second Addendum to Phase 1 Development and Reimbursement Agreement 4879-5813-2862 v.1
	INFO ITEM 1 -10.10.2023 Lease Reporting
	INFO ITEM 2 - 10.10.2023 Available Space for CDRPA Board Meeting
	INFO ITEM 4 - TRICIA - Thank You Card from WVDRC
	STAFF REPORT 1- JIM - DOH Associates - Cashmere Mill Site Sidewalk Restoration
	STAFF REPORT 2 - TRICIA - Q3 CTC Revenue Report 2023
	2023 Meeting Center Revenue

	xx. 2023-24 Calendar





